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 FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
Annual report and financial statements
for the yea'r.ended 30 June 2023

Strategic report

The board has pleasure in presentlng the strateglc report of Fllght Centre. (UK) Limited for the year
ended 30 June 2023.

Prlnmpal activities and business review . -

The Company’s pl‘lnClpa| activity contlnued to be that of a prowder of business travel management
'serwces and retaller of domestic and international travel.

Flight Centre (UK) Limited flnlshed the full year with turnover levels of circa 80% of FY 2019 Ievels
_(used as a comparative period as FY 2019 was prior to COVID-19 and therefore the last financial year
of standard trading). Customer confidence and demand for travel was h|gh with still some pent-up
demand flowing through in the first ‘quarter of the year. '

The key focus for the Company this year has been managing the rapld return of travel supporting
_customers through uncertain times, and returnlng the business to profitability.

The key mid-term strateglc priorities for the directors have been:

1) Returnto FY 2019 profitability.

) - Ensuring resources are managed appropriately to meet the needs of our customers across all
our brands, including a focus on recruitment and retention. :

Re-igniting the Flight Centre culture for our people as they return to work.

Investment in the well-being and development of our people.

Prioritising areas for investment to enable future growth.

Realisation of benefits from investments in productlwty measures.

N

O AW
o2

In'the opinion of the directors, the Company performed well agalnst these key strategic priorities for the
financial year and continue to do so. FY 2023 saw the realisation of significant productivity gains,
following the reshaping of the business across FY 2021 and FY 2022. This has resulted in the Company
dellvenng record levels of profit, exceeding FY 2019 levels.

- ‘Productuwty initiatives have meant that whilst costs have mcreased year on year with the increase in -
travel demand; the Company has been able to maintain cost Ievels at circa 70% of FY 2019 Ievels
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Strategic report (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the Company was performing well prior to FY 2020 (pre-COVID);
delivering strong results in both total transactional value (TTV) and profit before tax. A key goal for this
year was to return the Company to similar levels of profit as FY 2019. This goal has been exceeded -
with the Company delivering record profits in FY 2023 of £30.5m. This has been achieved through the -
reshaping of the business over the last 2 years and continued investment in customer facing and
internal technology initiatives to drive productivity. .

Principal risks and uncertainty

The board and senior executives consider the principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Company.
to fall under the following categories. The risk factors should not be regarded as a full and

. comprehensive statement of all potential risks that might impact the Company's performance. The
Company maintains an active risk register which is regularly reviewed by senior local management and
is additionally reported to the Flight Centre Travel Group Limited board. ‘ ‘

. 1) Trading Risks

Events outside the board's control include acts of terrorism; international wars, pandemics,
earthquakes, and other natural disasters. Such events would have an adverse impact on the Company’s
trading position. The board recognises that it cannot mitigate specifically against these acts. However,
the Company’s continuing broad product offering, through its portfolio of trading brands in terms of
customer experience-and destination, can help to reduce the impact of these risks. '

FY 2023 has seen a very strong demand for travel across both business and leisure travel. This is
despite the economic pressures experienced in the UK through rising interest rates and inflation.

2) Competition .

The Company faces competition from a wide range of travel companies due to its broad travel offering.
Such competition can adversely impact market share, margins and ultimately profit. The Company looks
to mitigate this risk by undertaking frequent reviews of pricing, product and service offerings to ensure
competitiveness and by differentiating itself from the competition through the high levels of customer
service and product understanding it can offer through all its brands. The corporate travel market is.

witnessing more and more technology-based disruptors entering the marketplace. In response, the
Company and its parent company continue to increase their investment in technology to compliment

" the people offering at the core of its success. -

Due to the Company's commitment to an offline retail offering, the increasing  desire for customers to
book travel online is often seen to pose a risk to the Company’s market share and margins. The
Company continually reviews its online strategy to ensure that it reflects the changing needs of its
customers and how they choose to purchase travel. The Company's offline offering provides our
customers with a high touch, enriched booking experience specifically suited -to complex travel
arrangements. With the staggered easing of travel restrictions across international borders-and travel
requirements, this has created greater complexity for our customers, and they have in turn valued even
':'more the reassurances and expertise provided through our offline channels. :

The Company will continue to invest in a multi-channel offering to meet the booking channel preferences

of all customers. The Company continues to ensure that its websites strongly communicate to its

customers the. offerings and benefits available through dealing directly with its travel consuitants in its

high street stores or over the phone. Whilst the Company in direct response to COVID-19 had to

significantly rationalise its physical Leisure footprint, it recognises the importance to our customers and
~ the role physical locations play in providing a multi-channel offering.
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Strategic report (continued)

- 3) Employee attrition

Staff retention levels in FY 2023 have been at record levels. This is despite the broad challenges the
industry has experienced with a shortage of key talent with travel industry experience. This reflects the
efforts of the Company to invest in its people. Rising inflation and interest rates have increased
‘ pressures on salary levels. Consequently, the Company implemented a one off ‘Cost of Living’ increase
for all Support staff at the beginning of the year. In addition, through the year salarles and remuneration
packages have been constantly reviewed. :

Other areas of focus have been investment in our people’s learning and development, supporting
flexible working and ensuring we have an attractive working environment for our people.

The pressures and challenges in recruitment experienced in FY 2022 have eased in the last year.
However, the Company-has a constant focus on delivering an excellent Employee Value proposition to -
counter the contin’ued inflationary wage pressures that exist in'the market. - :

1Change in Accounting Policy

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - The Company has historically recognised,

- measured, and disclosed revenue according to whether the Company has acted as an agent or a.
“principal. Following a review of accounting policies conducted by Flight Centre Travel Group, it was
deemed -appropriate that all revenue should be accounted for as Agent. This change more accurately
reflects the substance of the business transactions, whereby the nature of the transactions are to
arrange for the goods or services to be provided by another party. As such, our entity does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party before that good or service is transferred to the
customer.

As a result of this change, an adjustment has been made to FY 2022 in order to align the income
.recognition methodology with FY 2023. The impact of this adjustment on the FY 2022 accounts is a net
decrease of £11,557k to revenue, with Cost of Sales being restated to nil. There was an £862k increase
.o operating profit resulting from a revenue timing adjustment booked to recognise additional sales for
which obligations had not been fulfilled at the financial year.end on a principal basis. There was also an
increase of £164k to income tax expense and corresponding ‘decreases to trade and other payables
and deferred income tax assets respectlvely FY 2022 accounts have been restated to account for this.

Full details are dlsclosed in the Financial Statement note 2 — (s) Changes in accountlng policy and
disclosures. : :
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Strategic report (continued)
Section 172 statement

‘The followrng dlsclosure describes how the dlrectors have had regard to the matters set out in section
172(1a) — (f) and forms the directors’ statement required under section 414CZA of the Companies Act
20086. ‘ e ' : g .

The directors of the Company have always taken decisions for the long-term and collectively and
individually our aim is always to uphold the highest standards of conduct, as documented in our internal
policies, code of conduct and Company philosophies. We expect all of our colleagues, at all levels of
the business, to do the same. Equally we know that our Company can only grow and succeed over the
long term if we understand and respect the views and needs of our customers, our people, our suppliers
and the local communities we operate in, as well as our shareholders to whom we are accountable.

We understand that our strategic direction can only be achieved with the ‘support and collaboration
across our key stakeholder groups. We have a respon3|blllty to our stakeholders to consrder the|r views
‘and to engage in matters that are important to them.

Set out below are the key stakeholder groups the directors have identified, the engagement that allows
the directors to capture the views and needs of its key stakeholders and the key issues and decisions
made that have materially rmpacted stakeholders.

Our customers

Importance
We recognise that our customers always have a choice, and we care about delivering amazing travel
experiences.

Engagement: .
The service we provide our customers is delivered through small, dedlcated teams and individual travel
consultants. :

In our business travel brands, we invest heavily in our Account Management teams and recognise the
importance of establishing multi-level relationships with our customers, through'to the senior leadershlp .
team. An important element of this is regular customer'account reviews.

Our busmess travel brands conduct a structured programme of Client Advisory Groups and in addition
hold regular events with our customers both to thank-our customers for their support but also to build
further engagement

Across all our brands we run a programme of customer surveys and feedback and utilise external
metrics such as Trust Pilot scores to help measure the quality of service we provide our customers.

Our Marketing departments'regularly run market research and customer focus groups to ensure that
we are able to fully understand the changing needs of our customers and the broader market.

Key deC/SIons

It has been clear from our customers that they have had a heightened need for interaction and support
from our travel experts. This has often resulted in considerably more interactions and touch points with
our customers for a single booking. This has led the senior management team to prioritise investment
in consultant numbers (increasing average headcount by 19% to 529 FTE) and productivity initiatives .
to'ensure we meet these additional needs of our customers across all brands.
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Strategic report .(continued)

Our people

Importance:

Our Company is our people We care for our colieagues’ health and well-being, their personal and
professional development and their financial security. We believe work should be challenging and fun
for everyone and through work we contribute to our commumty :

Engagement:

The Company has aIways believed in the importance of maintaining a lean and flat organlsatlonal
" structure, whereby our senior leaders are always .accessible to our people. Aligned to this is our small
- team structure, which we believe is critical to being able to provide support and development for

individuals. .

Monthly one on one’s, weekly team meetings, off site planning days and staff conferences ensure that
there is always open and honest dialogue between all our people. In addition, the CEOQ regularly holds
‘Off the Record’ breakfasts with employees across the business to hear and understand the concerns
and challenges our people are experiencing.

Annual staff surveys are critical to capturing.the views of our people' and identifying areas where we
can improve from a people support perspective. The Company also participates in-the Great Places to -
Work scheme which prowdes further insights into the needs of our people. .

Through the investment in our new Head Offlce we have created a worklng environment that supports
and- promotes collaborative working. The Company sees collaborative working, .in person, as key to
driving the success of our people. .

Key dec:s;ons ‘
~ The senior management team recognise the mcreased deswe of its people for flexible working. As a
" result, the Company continues to operate a hybrid working policy, with a minimum of three days a week
in the office. At the same time, it has also taken steps to provide more collaborative working spaces
within the office for when people aré in the office, recognlsmg the importance of collaboratlon to mental'
" well-being and productivity.

The Company believe‘s in the importance of in person interaction and that it is key for individuals mental
wellbeing, development, and Iearning' Also, this helps maintain a strong sense of company culture.

~ Consequently, the Company actively promotes in office working, whilst continuing to provnde the
flexibility our people value. :

In FY'2023 annual leave entitiement was increased to 30 days leave in addition to bank hoI.idays for all
employees with over 10 years' experience at the Company. Additionally, a new scheme has been
introduced Whereby employees can purchase additional annual leave.

Introduction of a Volunteer Day, in addition to annual Ieave to support our people in supporting local
charities.

This year the Company launched an electric vehlcle lease scheme. The par’uc;patlon from employees
has been very strong.
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Strategic report (continued)
Our suppliers e

" importance:
.Our suppliers are critical to ensuring we can dehver con5|stent serwces Ievels and products for.
customers and for us to achieve our commercial goals o

Engagement: i

It is important to foster strong multi-level relationships W|th our suppliers and senior management take
an active role in achieving this. Additionally, our dedicated supplier management teams are responsible
for ensuring that there are regular service and commercial I'EVIeWS with aII our key suppllers ‘with key
matters being reported to directors.

Key deCIS/ons C
The company has reafflrmed its commltment to a blended suppller engagement model, utilising both
global and local teams. : .

[y
Y

Regulators and lndustry_ bodies

lmportance :
It is important to fuIIy understand and comply ‘with regulator and mdustry body reqmrements to ensure
the Company is Iawfu!ly trading. .

Engagement:

~ The Company actively engages with key mdustry bodies, |nclud|ng the Association of Brltlsh Travel
Agents (ABTA) and the Business Travel Association, to be informed of current issues faced by the.
industry. The Company also invests time and resource in fostering open relationships and dialogue with
both the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) and the International Air Transport Association (IATA)

Key deCISIons

The ‘Company recognises that there are a number of challenges that impact the travel industry as a
whole, including sustainability and talent attraction. As a consequence, the Company is endeavourmg
to increase its involvement with the key industry bodies; working to meet these challenges.

In addition to contlnumg tositon the ABTA Board, Adam Murray, (CFO) alsommed the Business TraveI
Association Board in September 2022. .

Local communities

Importance:

The Company believes |t can have a positive impact on the Iocal communities in which it operates,
servicing local businesses and customers, prowdlng employment and recogmsmg the need to be
respectful of the local enwronment A ‘

 Engagement:
The Company continues to operate on the High Street, placmg our busmess d|rectly W|th|n communities.

Key decisions: ’

The Company continues to believe in the |mportance of having a high street presence and as such the
decision was made to both retain its current number.of reta|I S|tes and grow this number over the comlng
years. .
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- Strategic report (continued)
Parent company .

‘Importance:
We recognise our respon3|b|I|t|es asa subsndlary of our Australian parent I|sted on the ASX.

Engagement:
The Company has representatlon on the Global Management Téam. Across all key functions of the
business, the Flight Centre Group operates global structures which the-Company is represented on.

The Company has a regular cadence of financial and operational reporting to its parent often providing
daily updates on key trading metrics to ensure the parent company has a full and timely understanding
of the Company'’s trading position.

Financial revi'ew and key performance indicators

The Company's objectives are set annually, and progress is monitored by the board of directors and
senior executives. A number of key performance indicators are used as part of this process to track
- performance year on year. FY 2022 key performance indicators have been restated for revenue and
profit before tax as a result of the IFRS 15 accounting policy change as set out on-page 5 and fulil
restatement details in the Financial Statement note 2 — (s) Changes in.accounting policy and
disclosures. ' ' o Co

Total transactional value £000

FY2023  £1,038405
FY 2022 . . £541.718

% variance . . 92% increase
~ Total transactional value represents the price at which travel products and services have been sold and

is stated net of VAT. This represents the total turnover value of the Company and is deemed a key
. indicator of business performance

Strong levels of trading throughout' the year with full year turn.'over reaching circa 80% of FY 2019
levels. Whereas in the prror year traveI restrictions where still in place for a sngnlf icant perlod of the year

‘ Total revenue £'000

FY2023 : £148,482

FY 2022 £80,866 (Restated)
% variance 84% increase

- The return of revenue foIIowed a similar pattern to TTV. However the increased costs of travel content
(a|rfares and hotels) has had a negatlve impact on reported income margins.
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Strategic report (continued)
Proﬁt before income tax £'000

FY 2023 ° £30472

‘FY 2022 . £3,569 (Restated)
% variance . 754% increase

* FY 2023 has seen the continuation of the return of travel and started to show meaningful recovery in
"the second half of FY 2022. Whilst turnover levels for the year represented circa 80% of FY 2019 levels,

~ containment of costs and increased productivity levels have meant that the Company has been able to
dellver record profits, exceeding FY 2019 levels.

Average consultant numbers

2023 . 529
2022 448 A
% variance 19% increase )

Average consultant numbers represent the number of full time equrvalent employed sales consultants
in the financial year : : , . oo

_ Investment i _|n consultants this year~was required to meet the increased demand for travel. The Company
is proud.that it was able to meet this requirement in a timely manner. Consultant numbers remain at
only half FY 2019 levels, reflecting the investment in several productivity improvement initiatives.

- Future developments '

The directors are pleased that with the return of demand for travel across both business and leisure
sectors the company has been able to return to and exceed FY 2019 levels of profitability. The directors
are confident that this provides a stable basis from which the Company can continue to invest and grow
for the future. The Company will continue to invest in its people’s wellbeing and development and‘in
technology to enhance the experiences of its.customers. - ) .

- The Company will continue to look to grow both its busrness and Ieisure brands.

Investment in mterna! productlvrty gains will contrnue to be a focus- over the mid-term to ensure
sustarnable profitability in an enwronment where mflatlon remains high.

By order of'the board’

BocuSigned by:
8E38B0841808412...
A Murray

Company secretary
- 21 December 2023 -
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Directors’ report

The board has pleasure in presentmg the directors' report of Fllght Centre (UK) Limited for the year

- ended 30 June 2023.
Results and div’idend's

The trading results for the financial year and the Company’s fnanmal posmon at the end of the financial -
year are shown'in the strategic report and the financial statements. No leldends were declared or paid
during FY 2023 (FY 2022; £nil). '

Going concern

While COVID-19 created ‘significant stress on the Company, resulting in significant losses in FY 2020

and FY 2021, the Company has now recovered, 'and profits: now .exceed pre-pandemic levels of

profitability. The outlook for growth is positive, with the Company seeking to contmue building on its
. strong history of being a growing, profitable and cash positive business.

Profit and cash flow forecasts for the company reflect a positive outlook with continued growth for FY
2024. The Directors in their assessment of going concern have modelled a cash flow projection for the
-period to 31 December 2024. The Company has the ability to meet its debts as and when due for the |

* next 12 months and for the financial statements.to be prepared on a'going concern basis. -

The key assumptions and inputs to this model are:

+ The projected turnover reflects a continuation of the increase in booking volumes
experienced throughout 2023

+ The Company’s cost base wnII increase due to increase in employee numbers and growth
in store portfolio

*  The bank overdraft W|II be repaid in fuII by February:2024

Having reviewed the forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
-sufficient liquidity to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months and hence
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. -

Sensitivities have been modelled to determine the impact of possible downside scenarios on the
Company's available cash balances and financial position, including a reverse stress test. There is still
a level of uncertainty created by the current economic environment. The Company has modelled severe
but plausible downside scenarios and in the event that the Company would need to secure additional
funding, this would-be provided by the parent company. The Directors have received a support letter

- from the parent company which confirms that financial support will be provided up to a cap of £25m for
a period of 12 months from the date that the fmanmal statements are signed to enable the: company to
meet its liabilities as these faII due. :

The Dlrectors have considered the ability of Flight Centre Travel Group Limited to support the company,

including the consideration of the group's cash flows and related assumptions. in making this

assessment, the Directors considered the potential |mpact of cash flows and liquidity of the group over
. the period to 31 December 2024. . .

Based on this assessment, the Directors Have a reasonable expectation that the parent company has

adequate resources to support the-:Company. For these reasons the Directors: continue to adopt the
going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements for the Company.

11
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Director’s report (continued)
. Directors ' ‘

The directors who held office during the fmanmal year and up to the date of slgnmg these financial
statements are given on page 2.

Directors’ indemnities

Flight Centre Travel Group Limited; the Company’s ultimate p‘arent undertaking and controlling party,
maintains liability insurance for the Company’s directors and ofﬁcers.

Employees and equal'opportunities

The Company is committed to employment policies, which follow: best practlce based on equal

-opportunities for all employees, irrespective of sex, race, colour or dlsabrhty The Company gives full

and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their

particular aptitudes and abilities. Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment

and training, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Company. If

members of staff become disabled, the Company continues employment either in the same or an -
~_ alternative position, with appropriate retraining being given if necessary.

Employee involvement

The Company systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to. them,
consulting them or their representatives regularly, so that their views can. be taken into-account when
making decisions that are likely to affect their interests. The Company conducts an annual employee
survey to gauge employee engagement with the Company and ascertain levels of motivation,
contentment, quality of leadership, systems and levels of reward: Employee involvement in the
Company is encouraged, as achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the
financial and economic factors affecting the Company plays a major role in maintaining its success. The
Company encourages the involvement of employees by means of standard communication systems,
which stipulate that leaders at all levels should have regular one to one meetings with their staff as well
as weekly business meetings with their teams. Furthermore, leaders at all levels within the Company
publish.regular newsletters on the Company's lntranet which keep all readers mformed on current
developments within their respective areas. .

Policy on financial risk management

The Companys pollcy on financial risk management is continually rewewed throughout the financial
- year to ensure it is current and appropriate. The senior management team jointly have responsibility for

thISA Further details on the Company's management of this risk can be found in note 23.

-. Political donations

No political donations were made in either the current-or prior periods.

12
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Directof’s report (continued)
Environmental impact

GHG Emissions and Energy Performance
Flight. Centre (UK) Limited recognlses the growing |mportance of sustainability and the enwronmental :

impact of our operating. activities. We are continually working with. internal and external stakeholders to.
minimise our carbon footprint and improve our sustalnablllty posmon across a range of areas via a

. series of |mt|at|ves

These initiatives mclude a carbon offsetting policy, move to energy efficient buildings, procurement of
green energy, installation of smart meters, upgrade to sensor and .energy efficient Ilghtlng, zero-to-
landfill waste, and an electric vehicle leasing scheme.

These are combined with more operational measures such as the promotion to staff of reducing energy,
plastic, water consumption, and a focus on-the waste hierarchy of reduction, reuse, recycling. .
Particularly of note this year and representing many of these initiatives is the move to a new upgraded

Head Office bwldlng , .

The Global Sustainability - Officer (GSO) is responsible for driving a group wide approach to .
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) to ensure greater impact and consistency of approach
throughout our business. The Group Sustainability Executive Team — consisting of four members of the

. global Executive Team, the GSO and representatives from various other parts of our business —

ensures sustainability strategles and goals align with the company'’s. overarchlng busmess objectlves

globally.

L

a number of channels and as an agent for the end- suppllers itis not in |tse|f a major emitter.

Flight Centre (UK) L|m|ted is required to report under the Streamlmed Energy and Carbon Reportlng
(SECR) framework, under the Companies (Diréctors’ Report) and Limited Liability Pannershlps (Energy .

. and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018.

13
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Directors’ report (continued)

We appointed BIU energy consultants to audit our environmental impact in compliance with.the SECR
framework. -This has been calculated in accordance with Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocal and.
Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance. In
preparing the report we have estlmated or extrapolated less than 1% of the- overall Energy data (kwh)
and overall emissions. ’

Pei’formance:
*followed by table extracted from BIU report

Sources of greenhouse gas emissions’ 2023 consumption 2023 emissions

A _ : (kWh) (tCO2e)
Scope 1 emissions @ * Natural gas 72,514 13.24
- e - Organisation : ' : :
b . .
Scope 2 emissions controlled electricity - 4 546,838 106
Scope 3 emissions ¢ Indirect transport 18,739 5
Total S ' 638,090 124
~Carbon Inten3|ty ' L
Scope 1, 2 & 3 emissions lelded by total transaction value (TTV)

tcO2e/EmTTVE ' - ' . 012

a) This primarily comprises the emissions associated with the combustlon of fuels, as weII as addmonal emissions sources such
as refrigerant leakages. '
~b) This primarily comprises the emlssmns assocnated with the electnclty consumptton as well as emissions associated with any
- generated electricity.
¢) This primarily comprises the emissions assomated with indirect travel i.e., employee owned vehlcles
d) This is comprised of all scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions (location based) assomated with the operating activities, divided by £m of
TTV. .
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
" Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are- responsnble for preparlng the strategic report, the directors’ report and the f nancial
statements in accordance with applicable law and reguiatlons :

Company law requires the directors.to prepare ﬁnanc_i’al statements for each.financial year. Under that
law. the directors have elected to prepare the financial statéements in accordance with UK adopted

“International Accounting Standards. Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and -of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements the directors are reqmred to:- : '

o select smtable .accounting policies and’ then apply them consistently.

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

o state whether applicable UK adopted International Accounting Standards have been followed,

k subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Company'’s financial position and financial performance; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to

' presume that the Company will continue in business.

\

“The directors are respon5|ble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company'’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the.financial statements comply with the

- Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement on disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as they

- are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware. Each of
the directors has taken all.of the steps that they ought to have-taken as directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit mformatnon and to establish that the Company s auditor is aware
of that information.

By order of the board

~—Docuslgned by: ..
6E38BD841606412...
- 'A Murray

Company secretary
21 December 2023 -
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Flight Centre (UK')VLimited"

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Flight Centre (UK) erlted for the year ended 30 June 2023
which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 27, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applred in
their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted Internatlonal Accounting Standards. :

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e _give a true and fair view of the Company'’s affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of its proft for the year
then-ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance Wlth UK adopted International Accountlng Standards;
and

. have been prepared in accordance W|th the reqwrements of the Companles Act 2006.

Ba3|s for opmron

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
appIrcabIe law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent
- of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethrcal
'responS|b|I|t|es in accordance with these requirements.

- We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basrs for
our oplnron - -

‘Conc|u5|ons relating to going concern

.In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
- basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relatrng to
events or conditions that, individually or collectrvely, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability
to continue as a going- concern for a period of 12 months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or. conditions can be
N predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company'’s ability to continue as a going coricern.

Other information ' . ‘

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than.the financial
. statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our

opinion on the financial statements does ‘not cover the other information and, except to the extent

otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information .
. and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
~ statements or.our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise. appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are requrred to report that fact

We have nothing to report in thrs regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the.information given inthe strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for WhICh
" the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and;

o the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with apphcable '
legal reqmrements

Matters on which'we are required to report by exception:

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material mlsstatements in the strategic report or the directors’
report. :

We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowmg matters in relation to WhICh the Compames Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

.+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for.
our audit-have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
"o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or -
o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities set: out on page 15, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for bemg satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to. fraud or
error. :

In prepanng the financial statements the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finan‘cial statefnents_

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
" audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered. material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic deC|S|ons of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was consrdered capable of detecting irregularities,
. including fraud A
Irregularities, including: fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulatlons We de3|gn
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The
risk of not detectlng a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
. misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

e We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
Company and determined that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework
(UK adopted International Accounting Standards) and the relevant UK tax compliance regulations,
principally relating to those issued by HMRC. In addition, we concluded .that there are certain
significant laws and regulations ‘which have an effect on the determination of the amounts and
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disclosures in the financial statements being the General Data Protection Regulation, those laws
" and regulations relating to health and safety and employee matters and specific regulations as set
out by the Civil Aviation Authority. , :
e We understood how the Company, is complymg with those frameworks by making enquiries of
. management, including those responsible for legal and compliance procedures. We corroborated
our enquiries through review of board minutes and by understanding the -entity level controls
implemented by those charged with governance. :
e _We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statements to material misstatement,
“including how fraud might occur by meeting with management to understand where it considered
there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered where the significant estimates and
~ judgements are in the financial statements. We assessed the programmes and controls that the
.Company has established to address the risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect -
- fraud and how management monitors those- programmes and controls. Where the risk was
- considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error.
¢ Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with
such laws and regulations.: Our procedures included enquiries of management and legal counsel;
and journal entry testing with a focus on manual journals or unusual transactions based on our
understandlng of the business. :

A further descrlptron of our responsrbllltles for the audlt of the financial statements is Iocated .on the‘
Financial Reporting Council's website at https:/iwww.frc.org. uk/audrtorsrespon3|brlrtres This description
-forms part of our auditor’'s report

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company s members as a body, in accordance wnth Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Companys members as a body, for our audit work for this
report or for the opinions we have formed.

s+ Ez owq) S :
Rachel Dockar Senlor statutory atditor) _ o

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

.London

21 December 2023
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Statement of corhprehe’nsive income
' for the year ended 30 Jung 2023

. Revenue from the sale of travel services

" Expenses _
Operating expenses .

Operating pfofit '
Finance income
Finance costs -

Profit before income tax .

Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year -

" FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

“Restated

30-Jun 30-Jun
A 2023 - 2022
Notes ' £'000 £'000
5 = 148,482 80,866
6 _ (121,454)  (79,095)
27,028 7T
8 6,960 2,844
8 _(3,518) (1,046)
N ' 30,472 3,569
.9 (5,145) (417)
25327 3152

N .

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in'cionjUnction with the accompanyihg

notes.

ltems in the statément above are all derived from continuing activities.
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
Annual report and financial statements
- for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of fmanmal position
as at 30 June 2023"

, Restated -
30-Jun 30-Jun
S 2023 . 2022
. "Notes (£'000 ‘ £'000
ASSETS ’ ' t :
Non-current assets ' .
Propeérty, plant and equ1pment , ' 10 : 3,474 1,290
Intangible assets C : 11 768 901
Right of use assets A 12 ' 8,837 5,217
Investment in subsidiaries . 13 ' _ 2 2
Deferred income tax assets .. 14 ' 6,097 8,345. -
Trade and other receivables. .15 78,837 - 62,816
Total non-current assets S o - - 98,015 78,571
. Current assets _ oo : , o
Trade and other receivables - ' 15 _ 89,354 66,205
Current income tax receivables : ’ . i 658 . -
Cash and cash equivalents . ) 16 12,150 25,287
Total current assets o . 102,162 © 91,492
Total assets - o : ‘ 200,177 170,063
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities _ - : . R : o
" Trade and other payables o 17 ’ 1,087 .. 1,887
Lease liabilities o 12 7170 " 4,098
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 19 - . 669 331
Total non-current liabilities . 8,926 _ 6,396
Current liabilities : . : . ‘ -
.Trade and other payables ) : 17 . 78,495 87,437
Lease liabilities . . - : 12 2,319 3,648
Borrowings ' : o 18 ) 26,300 . 13,951
Provisions for other liabilities and charges . 19- ' - 623 : 549
Current income tax liabilities ) ‘ 10 S .5
Total current liabilities L o . 107,747 105,490
Total liabilities . ) ' 116,673 111,886
Net assets . o : ' 83,504 58,177
EQUITY . . : : . .
Called up share capltal . : 2 .. 4,604 ' 4,604
‘Share premium account - - . ' ' R 4,674 4,674
Capital reserve - v . (578) (578)
Retained earnings. - ' _ B 74,804 49,477

Totalequity - .~ = . . 83,504 58,177
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK)‘LIMiTED
Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of financial position-
as at 30 June 2023 (continued)

"The notes on pages 24 to 70 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the board of dlrectors on 21 December 2023 and were
’ S|gned on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: ,
- GE38BD841606412... '

A Murray'

Director

Registered number 02937210
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._FLIGAHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED 4. |
Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023 -

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2023

. .Called . ‘S‘hare ) '
up share premium . Capital Retained ~Total

Notes capital account. reserve earnings equity
£'000 £'000 - £000 £000  £000
Balance as at 30 June 2021 44,,604‘ 4674 (578) 46325 55025
Profit for the year ' . - - . - . 2/454 2,454
-Total comprehensive income _ - - - 2,454 - 2454
_ Balance as at 30 June 2022 =~ . 4604 . 4,674 (578) 48,779 57,479
Profit for the year _ S ' 25,327 25,327
- Total comprehernsive income - = - 25327 25,327
Balance as at 30 June 2022 .. ' 4604 - 4674 - (578) 48,779 57,479
(as previously reported) - '
- Prior year adjustment 4 ' 2 S .- - 698 698 A
Balance as at 30 June 2022 , :
(Restated) ‘ . " - 4,604 4,674 (578) 49,477 = 58177
Profit for the year 30 June 202 ’ - - - 25327 25327
Total comprehensive income - - -- . 25327 25327
Balance as at 30 June 2023 . - 4604 - 4,674 (578) 74,804 . 83,504

The above statement of chahges in equity should be read in conjunctionAwith the accompanying notes. '

. The éapital reserve represents the excess of the costs of investment over the identified assets and
- liabilities transferred by subsidiary companies as part of group restructurings. «

.
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED :

Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023 -

Statement of cash flows :
for the year ended 30 June 2023

30-dun 30-Jun

~ 2023 _ 2022
. . Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities o P
Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations 7 340 - 13,117
Interest received -~ -~ .. 8 116 514 .
Interest paid ' _ .- 8 (654) (937)
Income tax (paid)/received C 4 (3,091) (16)
Net cash use.d in ope'ratin-g‘activities ‘ _ (3,290) 12,678
Cash flows from investing activities o _ .
Purchase of intangible fixed assets o 11 - (498) . (445)
. Purchase of property, plant and equipment E -~ 10 . (3,292) ' {381)
Loan to parent entity: - _ 15 - 100,000
‘Net cash flow generate from/(utilised in) investing activities . - (3,790) . - 99174
Cash flows from financing activities _ o
Repayment of principal on lease liabilities 12 .. . .
. . : ' < . (2,939) (3,926)
’Proceeds from loans from group undertakings 18 10,987 . 13,509
‘Repayment of loans from group undertakings 18
o o : i s (30,504) (8,373)
- Proceeds from bank overdraft facility , o 18 . -16,400 8,600
(Repayment of)/proceeds: from borrowings received .18 .- (114,245)
"Net cash (utilised in)/generated from financing activities ' - (6,056) (104,435)
Net increasel(decreése) in cash ‘and cash equivalents ‘ '(1 3,137) ' 7,417
Cash and cash equlivalents brought.fdmard v SR » ' '25,28‘7A - 17,870
Cash and'cash-eqdivalents carried forward ‘ 16 - 12,150 25,287

- The notes on pages 24 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
. Annual report and financial statements
forthe year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to 'the financial 'statements

1. General information_

‘The financial statements of Flight Centre (UK) Limited (the Company’ hereon) for the year ended 30
June 2023 were authorised for issue by the board of directors.on 21 December 2023 and srgned onits
behalf by A Murray. . .

The Company is a limited Itability company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The
address of its registered office is 4! Floor, 120 The Broadway, Wimbledon, London, SW19 1RH.

2, Summary of Significant accounting policies

' These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted Internatronal
Accounting Standards .

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain crltrcal accounting estimates. It also,
requires management to éxercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or areas where assumptlons
and estlmates .are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

(a) Basis.of preparatron

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial .statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the penods presented, unless otherwise
stated. _

All amounts within these financial statements have been presented to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated.

Statutory base
Flight Centre (UK) Limited is a company regrstered under the Companles Act 2006.

Historical cost convention A
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Group fmancral statements

The financial statements present mformatron about the Company as an individual undertaklng and not
about its group. The Company has not prepared group financial statements as it is exempt from the
requirement to do so by section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 as it is a subsidiary undertakmg of
Flight Centre Travel Group Limited, a company .incorporated in Australia, details of which. are in note
26, and is included in the consolldated financial statements of that company.

Pr/or year comparatlve lnformat/on

The prior year financial statements have been restated to reflect the change in accountlng policy, as -
disclosed in note 2(s). There has been an impact on the reported profit for the year and the net assets
as at 30 June 2022. The need to include the opening balance sheet at 1 July 2021 was considered in

. the assessment of the accounting policy change but, upon review, it was determined to not be required
as all revenue at 30 June 2021 was constrained. This was due to the impact of COVID-18, which
resulted-in constrained revenue due to the high probability of cancelled bookings during the pandemic.
As such, revenue could not be recognised until the customer had travelled (principal recognition basis)
rather than upon booking (agency recognition basis). As such, no deferral or accrual was required to
adjust revenue recogn|t|on timing or net assets in FY 2021.
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
Annual report and financial statements
for tne year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Going concern .

While COVID-19 created significant stress on the Company, resulting in significant losses in FY 2020

- and FY 2021, the Company has now recovered, and profits now exceed pre-pandemic levels of
profitability. The outlook for growth is positive, with the Company seeking to continue building on its
strong history of being a growing, profitable and cash positive business.

-Profit and cash flow forecasts for the company reflect a positive outlook with continued growth for
FY2024. The Directors in their assessment of going concern have modelled a cash flow projection for
the period to 31 December 2024. The Company has the ability to meet its debts as and when due for
the next 12 months and for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis.

- The key assumptions and inputs to this model are:

+ The projected turnover reflects a continuation of the increase in booking volumes
experienced throughout 2023
+  The Company'’s cost base will increase due to increase in employee numbers and growth
in store portfolio
-+ The bark overdraft will be repaid in full by February 2024

Having reviewed the forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company. has
sufficient liquidity to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12 months and hence continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.‘

Sensitivities have been modelled to determine the impact of possble downside scenarios on the
Company'’s available cash balances and financial position, including a reverse stress test. There is still
a level of uncertainty created by the current economic environment. The Company has modelled severe
but plausible downside scenarios and in the event that the Company would need to secure additional

" funding, this would be provided by the parent company. The Directors have received a support letter
from the parent company which confirms that financial support will be provided up to a cap of £25m for
a period of 12 months from the date that the financial statements are signed to enable the company to
meet its liabilities as these fall due. . . .

The Directors have considered the ability of Flight Centre Travel Group Limited to support the company,
including the consideration of the group’s cash flows and related assumptions. In making this
assessment, the Directors considered the potential impact of cash flows and liquidity of the group over
the period to 31 December 2024.

" Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the parent company has )
adequate resources to support the Company. For these reasoris the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements for the Company. :

(b) Foreign.currency translation

B (i) Functional and presentation currency ‘
The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Company’s functlonal and presentatlon '
currency. A

\_ (i)  Monetary assets and liabilities
Foreign currency transactions are translated lnto the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settiement of such transactions and from the re-translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the-statement of
comprehensive income. . .
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FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED
- Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023 .

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(c) Revenue recognltron ‘

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of domestrc and international travel that the customer is
entitled to, as well as other goods and services, net of value added tax ('VAT’), rebates and discounts.

“Revenue is generated when the Company, acting as an agent, arranges and books travel and travel
related products to be provided by suppliers to Retail and Corporate consumers. The supplier of the
travel products is the principal in the travel sales transactioh. From the Company’s. perspective, the
supplier of the travel products is the customer in. the agency relationship.

Revenue represents commission earned on flights, hotel bookings, package and other travel-related
sales. Revenue is recognised over time as the supplier of the travel products (the customer in the

. agency relationship under IFRS 15) simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of travel agency
services. Practically, revenue is recognised when all customer monies relating to each sale have been
received or invoiced and all obligations on the Company:. to fulfil the booking have been met, as this is
when the performance obligation is satisfied. . '

Revenue not generated directly from the issuing of travel documents is recogmsed in accordance wrth
contractual agreements

The Company applies a constraint to revenue to allow for bookings that may be cancelled prior to travel

(either by the supplier; end-consumer or due to government restrictions) requiring a refund of the
.. revenue earned by the Company. ‘

"The Company recognises a refund liability for the provision of refunds due, which recognises the

uncertainty that the travel may be.cancelled prior to departure. This is calculated using booking volumes

and margins, known or anticipated travel restrictions and cancellation probability rates.

This constraint of revenue will unwind when the uncertainty is removed Either the end consumer will
travel, in which case the Company will recognise the revenue.in the statement of comprehensrve
-income, or, if the travel does not proceed this contract liability wrll be settled via payment to the end
consumer.
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‘FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED °
Annual report and financial statements .
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(i) . Supplier incentives and lump-sum revenue

From time-to-time, incentives or lump sum amounts are received from suppliers. The supplier of the
travel products is the customer in the agency relationship under IFRS 15.. The recognition pattern is

" dependent on the specific terms of each contract. The revenue is only recognised upfront where there
has been a distinct service transferred upfront, otherwise it is recognised over the term of the contract
in line with the delivery of the performance obligation. The revenue can be either fixed or variable and
is constrained where contract terms require the supplier to be refunded in part or full upon termination
of the contract. _

Associated contract costs may be eligible for caprtalrsatron as fulfilment assets and amomsed over the
same period. . S

Lump sum deferred revenue is recognrsed over the contract terms whrch typrcally range between 1 to
3 years. : :

(i) . Revenue from events management services

‘For event management services, where events have a hfe cycle from acceptance (budget approval) to
event of four months -or more and the likely- revenues can be reliably estimated, the Company -
recognises revenue based on the stage of completlon of the event, being the period over which the
performance oblrgatlon is satisfied. .

(iii) . Other re'venue

Other revenue consists of non-travel related supplies.and management fees received from group.
entities for administrative services-provided. Other revenue is recognised over time as the services are
provided, being the period over which the performance obligation is satisfied. Where rebates are
‘received: from non-travel category suppliers, revenue is recognised as per the contract year and
matched to the period of performance. Where volume targets and associated rebate tiers exist,
estrmates of the full contract value are made and apportroned to the periods based on performance.

(d) Government sub5|d|es and grant income

Government subsidies and grant income is recognised when there is reasonable assurance. that the

conditions attached to the income will be met and that the income will be received. The income'is .

recognised in profit or loss over the periods in which the Company incurs expenses for which the
. subsidies or grants are intended to compensate. .

27



'DocuSig.n Envelope ID: D838878A-36E4-4B0A-8D59-A51E491AEQ19

FLIGHT CENTRE (UK) LIMITED -
Annual report and financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(e) Incometax

The income tax expense for the penod is the total of the current period’s taxable income based on the
income tax rate, any prior years' under/over provisions, and movements in the deferred tax balance
except where the movement in deferred tax is attributable to a movement in reserves.

Movements in deferred tax are attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and any unused tax losses or
credits. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates
expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates
which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. An exception is made for certain
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset
or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other
than a busiress combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting proft or
loss or taxable profit or loss.

+ Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to .
the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be avallable to utrllse those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrylng amount and tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary dlfferences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(f) - Leases

The Company's lease portfollo Iargely consists of land and buildings for its offrces and retail stores.
Lease contracts contain a wide variety of terms and conditions, are negotiated individually and typically
have a non-cancellable period of 1 - 10 years which may rnclude optrons to extend. On renewal the
terms of the leases are renegotlated

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. For leases of real estate for which the
Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate, lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component. :

The'lease agreements.do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. .

_ Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
|ncIude the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

» where variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured usrng .
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be paid by the Company under residual guarantees

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercrse that
option; and

. payments of penaltres for termrnatrng the Iease if the Iease term reﬂects the Company

exercising that option.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally-the case, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic environment with S|mllar terms, securlty
and conditions. :

To determine the incremental borrowing tate the Company:

. » where possible, uses recent third-party financing, adjusted to reﬂect changes 1n financing
conditions since third party.financing was received, :
¢ makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as lease term and securlty

Where the Company is exposed to potential future increases in varlable lease payments based on an
index or rate, these are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect the lease I|ab|I|ty is reassessed and adjusted
against the right of use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and fi nance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of mterest on the remaining
: baIance of the |labl|lty for each period.

:Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amiount of the initial measurement of the Iease I|ab|l|ty,
~ any lease payments made at-or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received; .
 any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's userI life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a. purchase option, the
Tight of use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with the short-term leases of property, plant and equipment and all leases of low

.. value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short term leases

N are leases with a lease term of 12 months or Iess Low-value assets compnse IT equipment with a value
of less than £5,000.

The Company adopted the amendment to IFRS 16 - 'COVID 19-related rent concessions beyond 30
June 2021, which extends the practical expedient originally provided. The amendment allowed for the

lessee to remeasure its lease liabilities from renegotiated leases as a direct consequence of COVID-. -~

" 19, with the corresponding adjustment to the right of use asset.’
()] Cash and cash equwalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call With financial institutions, other -
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement
of financial position.

Client cash represents amounts from customers held before release to service and product suppliers. '
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(h) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subS|d|ary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for any |mpa|rment in value.

(i) Fmanmal assets A '

'the Company applies the requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) to its ﬁn'an.cial asset_s.‘

CIass:f/cat/on ‘ '

~ Financial assets are classified in the following categorles fmanmal assets at amortised cost, falr value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive mcome (FVOCI). The i
classification depends on the purpose for which the assets were acqurred :

e Amortised cost: Applles to rnstruments which are held W|th|n a business model whose objectlve
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset represent contractual cash ﬂows that are solely payments of principal and
interest.

e FVTPL: Applies to instruments. WhICh are W|th|n a busmess model where the obJectrve is neither
.to hold to collect contractual cash flows nor hold to sell.

»- FVOCI: Applies to instruments which satisfy the requirements. of the business model test and
contractual cash flow test.

‘Management classifies its financial assets at initial recognrtron and re- evaluates this classification at
each reporting date.

(i Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are non- derlvatrve financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the’Company provides money,
goods or services directly to a customer with nointention of selling the receivable. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the statement of financial
position date which are classified as non-current assets. Financial assets at amortised cost are carried
at amortised cost usmg the effective interest method and are included in recelvables in the statement
of financial posmon -

: (i)  Impairment - expected credit losses

The Company applies both the general and simplified approach to the measurement of expected credit
losses (ECLs). Under the general approach the Company applies a three-stage model for measuring
ECLs based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition including: :

. Stage 1. 12-month ECL - Recognlsed on "good" exposures where there has not been a
" significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the loss represents the probability of
default from events that are possible over the next 12 months and not the cash flows the

. Company expects to lose over that period.

e Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition however default has not yet occurred, the loss represents the credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the asset.

- Stage 3: Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) - Financial asset becomes credit impaired as a result ,
of an event which has had a detrimental impact on future cash flows.

’
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The Company assesses. the credit risk and probability of default of financial assets by reference to
external rating agencies where available on an asset by asset basis: The Company has determined a
financial asset has low credit risk when it is equivalent to an investment grade quality. Where forward
looking .information is not available, the Company applies the rebuttable presumption.that credit risk
has increased S|gn|f|cantly when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due (entry into stage
2: Lifetime ECL) and, when contractual payments are greater than 90 days past due, the asset is credit
impaired (entry into stage 3: Lifetime ECL). '

For trade receivables, contract assets.and lease receivables which do not contain a significant financing

component, IFRS 9 offers’a policy choice between the application of the general model, as detailed

above, or a simplified approach. Under the simplified approach, the tracking of changes in credit risk is

not required, but instead requires the recognition of lifetime ECLs at all times and allows the use of a

provision matrix, incorporating the probability of default, as a practical expedient. The Company has
" elected the simplified approach for trade and overrlde recelvables

) Trade and other payables

- These amounts represent liabilities for gdods and services provided' to the Company pricr to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. The amounts are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost.

(k) Fair value estimation

The fair value of flnanmal assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an actlve market (for example over the
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation technlques

D Property, plant and equment

" All property, plant and eqmpment is stated at historical cost less depreC|at|on and lmpalrment Historical
.cost includes expenditure that is directly attnbutable to-the acqmsmon and installation of items for their
‘|ntended use. . .

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of comprehenswe income during the financial penod in whlch they are
incurred. : .

Deprecnatlon is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: :

o fixtures and fittings : 2-7 years
e other property, plant and equipment 3-20 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down lmmedlately toits recoverable amount if the asset's carrylng
" amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

In accordance with IAS 16, an,item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when that item is
disposed of or when there are no future economic benefits expected from its use or disposal. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing asset proceeds with carrying amounts. These are
included in the statement of comprehensive income within operating expenses.
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(m) Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

‘Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share
of the net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition and is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or immediately if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be |mpa|red and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. :

Gains and Iosses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwull relatmg to the
entity sold.’ .

.Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.
(i) Computer software

Software costs have a finite useful life. Capltahsed software is amortised usmg the stralght-lme method
and written off over the useful economic life of 3 years.

. Costs assocuated with developing or mamtammg computer software programs are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Company, and that are forecast to generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include the costs

- of software development employees and an appropriate: portion of relevant overheads.

(iii)  Other intangible assets

These amounts represent decommissioning assets. The present value of the dilapidation. costs.
associated with the fitout of new locations are capitalised in line with IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment and amortised over the life of the lease.

(n) Borrov_vlngs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the perlod of the borrowmgs using the effective
interest method '

" Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in wh|ch they are incurred and mclude
- interest on bank overdrafts and short and long-term borrowings:

Borrowmgs are classmed as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
the liability’s settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period's end. :

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed; is recognised in other income or other expenses.
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(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

. obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognlsed for future
operating losses. - - .

Restructuring provisions are recognised in accordance with the provisi-ons of IAS 37 Provisions,
Cornitingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets when there is a detailed plan for the restructuring and
where the Company has raised a valid expectatlon in those affected that the pIan will be carried out.

Prowsmns are measured at the present value of management's best eshmate of the expendlture
required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date. The discount rate
used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The mcrease in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest. expense : .

(p) Employee benefits -

" Liabilities for'_wage,s and salaries, expected ‘to be settled within-12 months of the'reporting'date are
recognised in other payables in .respect of employees' services up.to the reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. :

 The Company operates a defined contribution pensmn scheme. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The contributions are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. See note 20 for costs associated with this:
scheme. : . .

" (q) Share based payments

Flight Centre Travel Group Limited (FCTG), the Company’s parent company, issues equity-settied
share-based payments to certain empioyees of the Company. The fair value of performance rights
granted are recognised as an employee benefit expense recharged by FCTG to the Company. The fair
value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during WhICh employees become
Auncond|tlonally entitled to the rights. .

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes option prlcmg model The fair value
of the rights granted excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, continued
employment). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of rights
- that are expectéd to become exercisable and the length of the vesting period. At the reporting period’s
end, the Group revises its estimate of the number of rights that are ‘expected to become exercisable
_ and the most likely vesting period. The employee benefit expense recognlsed in each period takes into
account the most recent estimate. .
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(N Royalties .

Royalties are recognised in accordance with the relevant licence agreements each period. Any
differences between the estimated and actual royalties are adjusted for in the following year Royalties
are both. receivable (recorded in other revenue from travel services) and payable (recorded in’
expenses)

(s) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(i) Changes imaccounting policies and prior period restatements

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

‘ The Company has historically recognlsed measured and drsclosed revenue accordrng to whether the
- Company has acted as an agent or a principal. Following a review of accountrng policies conducted by -

Flight Centre Travel Group, it was deemed appropriate that revenue generated from package travel -
should instead be accounted for as Agent these were "previously treated as being a prrncrpal
arrangement . .

The group’s accounting position is that the Company, acting‘ as an agent, arrange and book travel and

“travel related products to be provided by suppliers to retail and corporate customers. The supplier of

the travel products is the principal in the wider travel sales transaction. From the Company’s
perspective, the supplier of the travel products is the customer in the agency relationship, with the .

~ Company earning revenue in the form of commission.

On a principal basis, revenue from sales was recorded over time (as the performance obligation was’
satisfied, on a percentage of completion method based on the total number of travel days), whereas on
an agency basis, revenue is recognised when all customér monies relating to each sale have been
received or mvorced and all obligations on the Company to fulfif the -booking have been met, as this is -
when the performance obligation is satisfied. As such agency revenue W|ll generally be recognised
earlier than prrncrpal revenue.

As a result of this change a timing adjustment has been made to FY 2022 to recognise additional L
revenue of £862k from sales for which obllgatrons had not been fulfilled at the financial year endona
principal basis. ‘

" This change more accurately reflects the nature of the business, which does not have control of the

goods or services before they are transferred to the customer and as such the timing -of revenue
recognition has been adjusted. -
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_Prior period comparatives

The prior period comparatives have been restated in accordance with 1AS 8: ‘Accounting _Pbliciés,
Changes in Accounting Policies and Errors’ and- have impacted the primary financial statements as

follows:

Restated FY.2022 Presentation of Revenue

30 an_2022 _Adoption of Restated 30
as originally Agency June 2022
_presented . .

, -~ £000 ~ £000 - '£'000

Revenue fl;om the pro\)ision of travel as agent _ 2;1,502 : 2,753 _ ' 27,255
Revenue from the provision of travel as principal _ 14,310 *(14,310) ‘ -

- Revenue from the provision of travel services 38,812 (11,557) 27,255

Restated FY 2022 Statement of comprehenéive imiomé 3b Jun . '
A | " 2022as  Adoptionof  estated
. . . .30 June:

- o , _ originally . Agency 2022

‘ presented - -
£'000 £000 £000

‘Revenue 92,423 (11,557) 80,866
Cost of Sales (12,419) 12,419 -
Gross Profit 80,004 862 80,866
Operating profit , ‘ : ' . .g09 862 1,771
Profit before income tax _ . - 2,707 862 3,569
Income tax expense (253) " (164) (417)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,454 ' 3,152

.35
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Restated FY 2022 Statement of financial position © 30Jun. :
. 2022 as Adoption of Restated 30
. originally ‘Agency “June 2022
presented , : R
- £'000 £000- £'000
ASSETS , y ‘ ' ' .
~ Deferred in'come tax assets : . : . » 8509 L (164) . . 8,345
i . Total non-current assets - . o - : 78 , 735 ‘ - (164) 78,571 .
Total assets : 4 : 170,227 * (164) 170,083 -
LIABILITES -~ . . - . . - ]
Trade and other payables ' . o ‘ . 88,299 ' (862)” 87,437 .
¢ Total current liabilities - . o 106,352 (862) 105,480
Total liabilities - - 112,748 (862) - 111,886
Net assets o | - 57479 698 58,177
EQUITY o o - .
Retained earnings - . : ) _ 48,779 - 698 49,477 -

* Totalequity. - - . - - 57,479 698 . 58177

~

All Fmanc:al statement schedules and worklng notes have been updated to reflect the above restated
FY 2022 and FY 2023 disclosures.

(i) /nterpretat/ons and revised standards that are not yet effective and have not been eady adopted
by the Company

There are no standards and interpretations to existing standards that have been published that are

- mandatory for the Company's future. accounting, but which the Company has not adopted early, that
are expected to have a material financial |mpact on the entity.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and assurriptiohs concerning the future. Estimates andjudgements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations '

of future events'that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
~ estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions -
" that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrymg amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are dlscussed below. -

(i) Revenue recOgnition

“The Company applleSJudgement in determining whether itis acting as principal or agent in the prov15|on

of travel services based on whether it controls the goods and services before they are transferred to o '

the customer.

The Company recognises Revenue on an agency baeis ‘As an agent, the Company is primarily
responsible for the sourcing and arranging of travel services, Wthh are all prowded by third party
suppliers. : ‘

Revenue is generated when The Company, acting'as an agent, -arrange and book travel and travel
related' products to be provided by suppliers to retail and corporate consumers. The supplier of the
travel products is the principal in the wider travel sales transaction. From FLT's perspective (under IFRS
15), the supplier of the travel products is the customer in the agency reIatlonshlp :

The service is paid for in a variety of ways, including guaranteed base payments, commissions, mark-

- ups, transaction fees, other ancillary fees and in the case.of cancelled travel, cancellation fees. Rebates
are received for using travel consolidator systems known as Global Distribution Systems (GDS) to
access and book travel supplier products. Guaranteed base payments, commission, mark-ups; -
transaction fees are paid for and recelved at the time of booking. . : :

Revenue is recognised over time as the supplier of the travel products (the customer in the agency -
relationship under IFRS 15) simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of the travel agency
services. Practically revenue is recognised when the booking is finalised as this is when the
performance obligation is satisfied.

As set out in note 2(c), a constraint on revenue has been made due to the uncertainty that the travel -
may be cancelled prior to departure. The level of constraint and the related liability included in note 17
is calculated using booking volumes and margins, known or anﬂc:pated travel restrictions and
cancellatlon probability rates based on forecast trading patterns.

(i) - Supplier Incentives

in addition to commission payments, the Company is eligible for override payments from its suppliers.
These overrides are negotiated with individual suppllers and will typically include a combination of
guaranteed payments and volume incentives. The volume lncentlves are recognised at the amount
recelvable when annual targets are likely to be achieved. : :

Override income contalns an accrual based onan analysis of current and future expected trading taking
into account historical'and newly negot|ated contracts. Where signed contracts are not secured in a

- timely manner, a more conservative approach is taken in any judgement. Accruals recognised have
taken this uncertainty into account and volume revenue has only been recognised to the extent of flown
revenue at guaranteed rates or expected incentive rates. - :

At 30 June 2023, the carrying value of override recelvables was £4, 670 000 (2022: £2,610,000), which
is included within trade receivables in note 15.
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(i) Provision for expected credit losses

The Company applies judgement in determining the expected credit losses (ECLs) to be applied against
trade and other receivables. Estimates and assumptions are made in assessing ECLs taking into
account the deterioration in ageing, known or expected financial difficulty of customers and individual
customer credit risk assessment with reference to external rating agencies and industry. The
judgements and assumptions used to estimate the allowance for expected credit losses. on trade
. receivables may change in future periods, ‘potentially impacting the business prospects and fi nancral
condition of customers and the Company s ability to collect the trade recervables . .

(iv) Income taxes

The Cémpany is subject to income taxes in the UK. The Company makes estimates and judgements in
determining the income tax expense for financial statement purposes and recognises liabilities for

" anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Currently, there =

are no anticipated tax audit issues. Further details on taxes are disclosed in note 9.
(\))4 'Le_ases
The Compeny applies judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options. The

lease term is determined as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or if any periods covered by

" an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The majority of the 4

Company's Ieases are renegotlated therefore the renewal optlons are not exercised.

4, Divis'ional information

DescriAption of segments -

Busmess segments

The Company operates in one business segment the sale of travel and travel related services and
- products. :

Geographlcal segments

The Company operates.in one geographic segment berng the Unlted Kingdom.
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5. Revenue

Restated
30-Jun 30-Jun
2023 2022

£000 £'000
Total transaction value (TTV) *.. o _ .~ 1,038,405 541,718
‘Revenue from the pfovision of travel services - ‘ v A 55,203 27,255
Management fees received from group entities ' 84,717 51,195
Other revenue , . S 8,562 2,416

‘Total revenue | - 148,482 80,866

* Total Transaction Value (TTV) does not represent revenue in accordance with IFRS 15. TTV
_represents the price (net of VAT) at which travel products and. services have been sold across the

Company's various operations, as agent for various airlines and other service prowders plus revenue
- from other sources. The Company' s-revenue is-derived from TTV.

Management fees recelved from group entities mclude income received from a subSIdlary undertaklng,

Flight Centre (UK) ‘Wholesale Limited, of £67 965,000 (FY 2022:-£40,806,000) in relation to
: ‘management services provided. : . '
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!

 6. Qperating profit
(a) Expenses by nature

30-Jun 7 30-Jun

Co - 2023 2022
Notes £'000 £'000
Profit before income tax includes the following spedific expenses:
Wages and salaries . _ : 61,485 45,270
. Pension costs o S o . 20 2,419 1,641
Social security costs - - 7443 5,590
" Share based payments * - - : o L 24 © 3,104 2,521
Total staff costs. - C ) 74,451 - 55,022
Government subsidies received - _ : T (13) . (1,270)
Depreciation o‘f property, plant and equipment ' 10 ., 894 1,111
- Amortisation of intangible assets _ - 11 © 497 - 598 -
Depreciation of right of use assets . ' A 12 2,410 2,309
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment : - 10 215 - -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets o 11 134 7
Impairment of right of.use assets (reversal)/expense 12 (264) (206)
- Impairment of investments in subsidiaries N 13 - -
Operating lease payments . y o 622 44
Foreign exchange loss T v I , o 597 138
Royalties L - : o o 5,550 cL
Other expenses ‘ ‘ : 36,171 | 21,151

Total Other Expenses - o . g o 46,825 = 25152

' A Duh'ng the financial year the Company obtained the folllc;wing services from'the Corﬁbany's‘auditor:

Fees payable to the Cdmpany‘s auditor for audit of the Company

financial statements S 188 . , 140

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services

_-tax services . N . - , - 11A , - 22

- other services R I S 2 22 ‘ 29
‘ o 191 191

'Operating expenses ' ' ' ‘ : T ' ‘ ) . 121,454 79,095
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Opefrating profit (continued)

Operating expenses are classified as follows: -

30-Jun 30-Jun

, 2023 2022
£'000 -+ £'000
Selling and distribution expenses - C ‘ o .6,153 ‘ 3,938,
~ Administrative expenses : : ) 115,301 75,157

121,454 © 79,095

(b) 'Employee information

The full time equivalent (FTE) average monthly number of persons employed by the Company durlng
the year |nclud|ng executive directors was: : '

30-Jun_ 30-Jun

2023 - 2022
' _ _ ~ Number . Number
Consultants . . : . -529 - 446
“Administration - S IR P 519 , 374
‘ ' o .1,048 o 820
"(c) Key management personnel compensation ‘
Directors' remuneration -~ - -

N B ©30-Jun . 30-Jun
' : ' 2023 2022
, : . : . £'000 . £'000
Aggregate emoluments - . ' . ‘ S 8 - 685
Pension contributions ' : ’ 20 15
o 861 700

Ag_gregate emoluments include: ' A A
Short term benefits S ‘ 861 700

Key management personnel consist only of the directors of the Company, eing the personnel with the
greatest authority for the strateglc direction and management of the Company
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 Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Operating profit (continued)‘ .
e o e - 30-Jun © 30-Jun

2023 ¢ . 2022
Number - "Number
Number of directors to whom retirement beneflts are accrumg _ s o '
under a defined contribution scheme . o | o 1
The number of directors who exercised share options . A 1 ! T
. The number of directors who recelved share options under S
long term incentive schemes - » A . . o 2 . 1
Highest paid director
30-Jun- 30-Jun
2023 - 2022
. £'000 : £'000
Amounts included above: . : ' o '
Aggregate emoluments ’ ‘ .. - 534 397

534 397
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7.  Cash flow from operating acfivities

Cash

generated from operations

. Profit/(loss) before income tax
. Adjustments for:

Chan

Cash

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of right of use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

- Loss on'disposal of intangible assets

Gain on disposal of right of use assets
Irﬁpairment of intangible assets
Impa'irment of right of use assets
Finance income .

Finance expense

ges in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

_Increasei(deérease)'in trade and other payables and

provisions for other liabilities and charges
generated from/(utilised in) operations

[
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Note.s'A

10
11
12
10
11

12 .

11
12

Restated

30-Jun 30-Jun

2023 2022

' £000 ~ £000

130,472 3,569
894 SR
497 - 598 .

2,410 2,309

215 - 0

134 7

(382) (755)
(264)  (208).

(6,960) (2.844)

" 3,516 1,046
(17,595) . (41,928)
(12,597 50,210 -

340 13,117
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Finance income and costs

30-Jun °30-Jun
E A _— C P 2023 2022
_ . T ... Notes £'000 £000
Finance income . a : , o o
Bank interest receivable : o ‘ 128 . 48
Ln;g:ts; kritzczlesivable on atmo"ur‘ns owed by group S 6,832 ’ ) 2796
6,960 2,844
_Finance costs . - i .
Interest payable on amounts owed to group undertaklngs o : 2,462 294
‘Interest payable on borrowings o S A ' 725 585
Unwinding of decommissioning provision discount - 18 . 22 © 15
Interest on lease-liabilities } . 12 o 307 162
: : : : : ‘ 3,516 1,046
Net finance income o S 3444 1798
9. Income tax expense
- (a) Income tax eXpénsel(credit) ’
o . Restated
30-Jun 30-Jun
2023 2022
. £'000, © - £000
‘Current tax: : : , o
) Tax on profit forthe year A a 2,733 . - 826
Adjustment in respect of prewous years . ' .- e _ (20)
: ' 2,733 806
Deferred tax: - : o ' '
Origination and reversal of timing d|fferences _ 3,561 - (128)
Adjustment in respect of prevnous years ‘ ' - ) 279 L (244)
Change in tax rate o o ' . (1,428) 7 3N
' 2,412 . (389)
Total tax expense ' - - 5145 417
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‘Notes tc_‘,t‘he' financial stétements_ (continued)
9. - Income tax eXpenée (continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of i'ncome tax expense

Restated
30-Jun- 30-Jun -
2023 - 2022
-£'000 - - £'000
Profit/(loss) before income tax ‘ ‘ 30472 . 3,569 -
Tax at UK tax rate of 20.5% (2022: 19. O%) o ) 6,247 - . 678
_ Tax effect of amounts:
Expenses not allowable for tax purposes : . 47 " 20
Adjustments in respect of previous years - deferred tax . 279 (244)
Adjustments in respect of prewous years - current tax C - - (20)
Change in tax rate ' - o : (1,428) - - 17)
Income tax charge/(credlt) o 5145 417

(c) Factors affecting future tax charges '

FoIIowmg the enactment of the Finance Act 2020 the maln rate of UK Corporatron tax was mcreased to
25% effective from 1 April 2023
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Notes to the fmancnal statements (contlnued)

10 Property, plant and equipment

At 30 June 2021

Cost :
Accumulated depreciation .
Net.boo_k amount

Year ended 30 June 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
- Depreciation write back on dlsposals
Depreciation charge
Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2022

Cost -+ -~
- Accumulated depreciation
-~ Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2023
Opening net book amount
Additions

Dlsposals

Depreciation write back on dlsposals

Depreciation charge
~ Closing net book amount’

- At 30 June 2023
Cost ”
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Other.

3 property,
Fixtures and plant and
fittings equipment Total
Notes - £000 " £'000 £000
9,953 " 5,988 15,941
(8,588) (5,333) ©(13,921).
1,365 ..655 2,020
\/ .
1,365 655 -2,020
44 .337 1381 -
(14) . (413) (427) -
o A 14 413 } 427
. 6(a) . (623) (488) . (1,111)
786 504 1,290
9,983 5912 15,895
(9,197) - *(5,408) (14,605)
786 504 1,290
786 504 1,290 . .
2,218 ' \1,073 3,292
 (3,765) (447) (4.212)
3,609 - 389 3,998
6 (a) (470) (424) (894)
2,379 1,095 - 3,474
8,437 " 6,537 14,974
(6,058) (5,442) (11,500)
2379 1,095

3,474

. The depreciation of property plant and equlpment is lncluded in operatlng expenses in the statement

of comprehensive income.
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- Notes to the financial statements (continued)‘
1. lntangible aéset‘s

. ' ' ' Other

, " Computer  intangible
) - Goodwill software assets - Total
Notes £'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000
At 30 June 2021 . , . .
- Cost 1,646 © 4,923 433 7,002 .
Accumulated amortisation and - L ‘ S
. impairment o (1,237) . - (4,385) (319) . (5,941)
Net bock amount ) I 409 ' 538 114 1,061
Year ended 30 June 2022 , e
Opening net book amount S 409 - 538 ) 114 1,061
Additions - - ‘ 210 235 445
" Disposals o - (242) - . (78) - (318)
Amortisation writeback on o ' :
disposals - ' - 242 69 311
Amortisation charge 6(a) - . (535) . (83) (598)
‘Closing net book amount 409 213 . 279 901 _.
Year ended 30 June 2022 ) .
Cost . , ' . 1,646 4,890 ‘ 592 7,128
Accumulated amortisation and S o T
impairment (1,237) - (4,677) (313) 3 (6 227)
Net book amount . o 408 213 279 901
Year ended 30 June 2023 . _ ' A v A
Opening net book amount - 409 . 213 - 279 901 .
- Additions ) ‘ - . - ‘ 498 " 498.
Disposals . o . - , (138) (39 . (177
Amonlsatlon writeback on . 8 35 a3
disposals . , -.
Amortisation charge = - 6 (a) - _ " (33) : (464) (497)
Closing néet book amount - 409 . - 50 309 768
At 30 June 2023 ‘ 4 A
Cost o ‘ . 1,646 4752 - 1,062 7,450
- ‘Accumulated amortisation and o ‘ : .
impairment : : (1,237) (4,702) L (743) .__(6,682)

Net book amount 409 50 309 768

The amortisation of intangible assets is included in operatmg expenses in the statement of
: comprehenswe income. -

. Goodwill

Taking |nto account a reasonable range of assumptions, the Company has not identified any mdlcators-
~ which would lead to further |mpa|rment for other intangible assets.

-
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12; Leases.

Right of use " Lease

~ ‘ assets liabilities
‘ Notes £'000 - £'000
~ Property o : , S : o
At 1 July 2021 ' ' ' . 7,604 12,459
.‘Disposals ° . ' ‘ (26) {400)
Depreciation expense : 6 (a) (2,309) - -
Impairment expense _ 6(a) o 206 . -
Lease modifications . - . (258) - ~ (639)
Interest expense - 8 . - 152
Lease liability repayment - - : o ' - (3926)
"At30June 2022 . 5217 7,646
Additions _ ‘ ‘ . o 5,833 5,664
' Disposals . - - T _ 66) - (448)
Depreciation expense ' : ' 6 (a) ©(2,410) _ -
Impairment reversal _ : - 6(a) : ’ 264 -
Interest expense A : 8‘ - 307
Lease liability repaymerit ‘ . ' . - (3,680)
At30June 2023 - . - 8838 9,489
- 30-Jun 30-Jun
4 : . . : - 2023 2022
- Right of use assets o , ‘ . £000 £'000
Cost A . ' A ” . 15651 14,582
Accumulated dépreciation‘ ‘ _ (6,158) ‘ (7,188)
. Accumulated impairment ' . - (656) (2,177)
Net book amount: : , o ‘ 8,837 5,217
30-Jun _30-dun .
- - o : . 2023 . 2022
Lease liabilities e j - £000 - £000
_ Current R s : ‘ - 2,319 - 3,548
Non-current R A A 7,170 4,098
Total lease liabilities T ‘ e 9,489 7,646

The Company surrendered 2 leases in the current financial year (2022 6 Ieases) for which the right of
- use asset and correspondmg lease liability had been impaired in the prior flnanC|aI year ’
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Notes to the financiaIAstat‘ements' (continued)

“13. Investrnent in subsidia_ries

Total

£'000

-At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 :
Cost 2

Name of undertaking o Country of ‘Effective .Proportion Nature of
. : incorporation holding . of voting business

) o . , _rights held .
F_Ilg_ht Centre (UK) Wholesale Unlted ) 100% 100% Wholesale
lelted : -Kingdom ) company

The directors belleve that the carrylng value of the mvestments is supported by thelr underlylng net

assets.

14. Deferred income tax assets

The balance comprises temporaty differénces attributable to:

Employee benefits
Tax losses carried forward
Decelerated capital allowances

Expected settlement
In excess of 12 months

-

) Restated
30Jun - 30-Jun
2023 2022 -
£000 . . £000
3,010 1,952
1,220 - 4598
1,703 1,795
5,033 8,345
. 5,933 8,345

5,933 8,345-

The utilisation of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits ansm-g
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences. The recognition of the deferred tax asset is

evidericed by forecasts of taxable income.
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" Notes to the financial statements (continued)

- 14. Deferred income tax assets (continued)

Movements: -

E Notes
At 30 June 2021 - '

(Charged) / credited to the statement

of comprehensive income : 9(a)

At 30 June 2022 (as previously
reported) ,

(as previously reported)

'Prjoryearadjust.ment - o ' _ _9(aj
At 30 June 2022 (Restated)

Credited / (charged) to the stateme_ht

ofcomprehensivelinc;ome . 9(a‘)‘

At 30 June 2023 -

| Tax
A - losses Decelerated
Employee carried capital’
entitlements forward allowances Total
£'000 £'000 _£'000 £'000
1,359 5,150 - 1,447 7,956
593 (388) 348 553
1,952 4,762' ' 1,795 '8,509
- - (164) ~  (164)
1,952 . 4,762 - 1,631 . 8,345
1,058 (3,542): 72 (2412)
1,220

-3,010

There are no ﬁnrecognised deferred tax éssets (2022: Enil). :

45'0'.
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NNotes to the financial statements (continued)

15. | Trade,and other receivables -

30Jdun  30-Jun’
) 2023 2022
o . £'000 - £000
Current . . ,
Trade receivables . ﬁ 68,290 62,628
Less: Provision for |mpa|rment of receivables . (2,234) .(1,379) -
Amounts ‘owed by group undertakings . 15,055 "0
Trade receivables - net o o A 81,111 61,249 -
Other receivables . . ' : - o
Amounts owed by group undertaklngs T 3,344 . 504
Deposits refundable - . : 205 406
Value added tax receivable - . 1,827 ‘ 2,319
Prepayments and acc'rue'd'income : : S 2,867 - 1,727
‘ ‘ 8,243 4,956
Total current 89,354 66,205
Non-current _ : _v .
Amounts owed by group undertakings . ‘ - 77,695 62,2'29
Prepayments'and accrued income . . 1,142 587
" Total non-current = e . . 78,837 62816
. Total trade ahd other receivables o S ) o | 168,191 'A 129,021

Non-current amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured and bear mterest at rates ranging
from'4.5% to 6.7% (2022 3.04% to 3. 87%) :

Other assets are unsecured, interest free and are due within their payment terms.

Ja) Impaired receivables

' The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a
lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables and contract assets. To measure expected
credit losses on a collective basis, _trade recelvables and supplier incentives receivables are grouped

based on S|m||ar credit risk.

The expected loss rates are based on the Company's historical credit losses experlenced adjusted for
current and forward looking |nformat|on affecting the Company's customers

»
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) K

15. Trade and bther receivables (continued) .

In addition to the standard credit risk assessment, the Company has performed additional analysis and
increased provision based on assumptions around thé deterioration in ageing, known or expected
financial difficulty of customers, individual customer credit risk assessment with reference to external
rating agencies and industry. The judgements and assumptions used to estimate the allowance for
expected credit losses on receivables may change in future periods as the pandemic continues to unfold
‘and impact the business prospects and financial condltlon of customers and the Company's ability to

collect the recelvables

As at 30 June 2023 the lifetime expected loss provjsio_n for trade receivables was as follows:

Brand

Corporate

Retail

Supplier incentives
Other

As at 30 June 2022 the lifetime expected loss provision for trade receivables was as follows:

Brand

Corporate
" Retail
Sup'plier incentives

':‘Other

Average -
expected loss -

rate

2.0%
10.4%

0.0%
. 0.0%

Average

. expected loss
- rate’

1.5%

10.9%

0.6%

0.2%

52

Gross carrying Loss
amount provision
£'000 £000
'57,351 1,656
5,531. 577
4,879
530 1
- 68,290 2,234
Gross carrying Loss
amount provision
£'000 £000
54,052 . 808
5,051 553
2,562 16
963 2
62,628 1,379
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'_Notes to the financial .stétements (continu_ed)

"15. Trade and other receivables (continued) "

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

¢

30-Jun 30-Jun

2023 2022

£‘000 £'000

Carrying amount at start of year S - ' . ' 1,379 . 1_,799
Provision charged/(released) during the year = =~ : — 1,152' : (299)
Amounts utilised in the year o - , (297) (121) '

’ : o - 2,234 1,379

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not bast
due. Based on the credit history of theseother classes, it is expected that these amounts will be received
when due. ’ ‘ s o

16. ‘Cash and cash equivalénts

30-Jun 30-Jun -

- 2023 2022
o o o R __£'000 . £000
Total cash at bank and in‘hand I : 12,150 - - 25287
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17. Trade aqd'other‘payables" |

Restated

30-Jun 30-Jun
2023 2022
£'000 £'000 -
Current i 4 S
Trade creditors . _ ' ) ', : o 29,800 55,932
Amounts owed to group undertakings’ ' o , 36,964 19,039
Value added tax payable S . ‘ - -
* Other taxation and social security ~~~ - S 2295 2,043
~ Deferred income i ' ' ‘ _ 590 - 329
Other payables - S ‘ ' 8,846. 10,094
" Total current S - 78,495 - 87,437
Non-current ‘ :
Deferred income 4 K . 1,087 1,359 .
Other payables - ' - 608
Total non-current L 1,087 1,967
Total trade and other payables : 79,582 89,404

“ .

As at 30 June 2023 all current trade ahd other payables are unsecured, interest freé‘énd are expected
to be settled within 12 months. . 4 ‘
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Notes to the fina'noial statements (continued)'

-18. Borrov'virlzlgs

N 30-Jun’ 30-Jun
2023 . 2022
£000 . .£'000
Current ) : A ' :
Bank overdraft - o ‘ ‘ © . 25,000 8,600
Amounts owed to group undertakings ' o T 1,300 . 5,351
' . o 26,300 13,951

The Company held a £15,000,000 overdraft facility until 30 September 2022. The utilised overdraft bore
interest at 2.95% above the Bank of England interest rate. On 17 October 2022, this facﬂlty was
" increased to £25,000,000 and extended to 28 February 2024.
' Amounts owed to group undertaklngs include the foilownng mter—company loans:
Flight Centre Travel Group (European Holdmgs) Limited: Short term Ioans were received bearmg

interest at 2.95% above the LIBOR rate with repayments required within 6 months. By 30 June 2023,
‘the amount owed was £1 300 000, plus the interest element outstandlng -

19. Provisions for other Iiabilities and charges

30-dun  +  30-Jun

2023 2022
£'000 - £'000
Current .
Decommissioning prowsmn S ’ h ‘ . 623 549
Non-current R . : i ‘
Decommissioning provision o - : : 669 - 331
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Notes to the financiai statements {continued)

19.- Provisions for other liabilities and charges (continued)
Decommissioning provision
30-Jun 30-Jun’
2023 2022 -
. Notes £'000 £'000.
Non-current & current .
. Carrying amount at start of year 880 756
' - Additional provisions recognised - . 498 235
Amounts used during the year (108) (126)
‘Unwinding of decommissioning provision discount B o 8 22 15
: ' L | 1,292 880

Carrying-amount at end of year

The decommissioning provision is made at the start of the lease for costs associated with brlnglng aII'
shops and buildings that the Company leases back to their original state when a site.is vacated A

provision is calculated for each property based on the type of shop and building.

~

The decomm|ssmn|ng prowsmns are expected to be utlllsed at the end of the respectlve leases up to
©2029. :

~

2'0. Pension costs

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the'schemevare held

separately from those of the -Company in an independently. administered fund. The pension cost -

" represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and amounted to £2,419,000 (2022:
£1,641,000). At 30 June 2023, £433 000 (2022 £364 OOO) was payable and is mcluded within trade
and other payables.: , _
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,Notesvto' the financial statements (continued)

21 . Share capital

(a) Share capital
30-Jun 30-Jun

2023 - . 2022
£'000 ~ £'000
4,603,982 (2022: 4,603,982) ordinary shares of £1 each B 4604 4,604

(b). drdinary shares

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully pald ordrnary share No restrictions -
to distributions to Company shareholders o

22. Commitments and contingencies
(a) . Commitments i
As at 30 June 2023 the Company- had no capltal commrtments (FY 2022: £n|I)

(b) Guarantees
The Company had provided the followmg guarantees at 30 June 2023

A guarantee for the usé of Alrplus Sweden purchasing card for Flrght Centre Travel Group (Europe)
AB, a wholly owned subsidiary of Flight Centre Travel Group lelted (ultlmate parent) in Australia, EUR
400 000 (FY- 2022: EUR 400 ,000). '

A guarantee to enable sales of rail tickets in-Sweden for Flight Centre Travel Group (Europe) AB, a
.wholly owned subsidiary of Flight Centre Travel Group L|m|ted (uItrmate parent) in Australia, SEK
© 2,900,000 (FY 2022: SEK 2,900 000) ' 4

(c) - Contmgent liabilities
As at 30 June 2023 the. Company had no srgmfcant contingent liabilities (FY 2022 £nil).
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" Notes to the financial statements (continued)

23. Financiél risk ménégement

The Companys act|V|t|es expose it to a variety of flnancral risks: liquidity rlsk credit risk, market risk,
transactional risk, supplier insolvency risk and capital risk. The Company has limited exposure to price
risk given that it transacts as an agent, it is seen by the consumer as an on seller of its suppliers’ land
or air products and as such, as with the rest of the industry, is able to pass on to its customers any price
fluctuations.

The Company, together with the support of the Group and central treasury department, continues to
ensure it retains a robust balance sheet and liquidity position to manage any uncertainties arising from
macro-economic factors and the risk of default by corporate customers. The Company has in place a .
risk management team; which reports to the chief financial officer, and seeks to limit the adverse effects
of these financial risks on the financial performance of the Company. The Company’s approach to these
risks is discussed below.- .

The Company holds the folioWing financial instruments:

Réstated

30-Jun 30-Jun

2023 2022

A " £'000 £'000

Financial assets '

~ At amortised cost : ) A
- Trade and other receivables s ] ‘ 83,230 62,083 -

Loan to parent entity o K - _ - : -

Amounts owed by group undertaklngs ' : o . 81,039 : 62,733
Cash and cash equwalents o . A 12;1 50 25,287

176,419 ~ 150,103

The falr value of loans and recewables represents the net amount expected to be recelved after
provnsuons for impairments have been made. :
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23. Financial risk management (continued)

_Financial liabilities

At amortised cost -

Trade and other payables -

Amounts owed to group Undertakings
Bank overdraft

Lease liabilities _

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

The carrying value approximafeé to the fair value of the financial instruments. .

30-Jun

30-Jun

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
38,646 66,634
38,264 24,390
25,000 8,600:
9,489 7,646

© 1,292 880 .

- 112,691 108,150

s

The fair value of.tra'de and other payables represenfs expected cash outflows to third party suppliers. .

(a) Market Risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

. The Company faces limited exposure to foreign exchange ﬂuctuatlons as the majority of transactions
are recorded in Sterllng Where there is a foreign exchange fluctuation this is absorbed in the business’

operating results.

The Company’s exbosUre to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

30-Jun

30-Jun

Total Financial assets

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total Financial liabilities

30-Jun 30-Jun
2023 2023 2022 2022
usD EUR usD EUR
£000 . £'000 . £'000 - £1000
- 1,107 - - 251
- 2,109 - 1,333
- 3,216 - 1,584
- 4,772 675 4,770

] 4,772 675

4,770

Ae at 30 June 2023 all financial liabilities are expected to be settled wifhin 12 monfhs..
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23. Financial risk management (contmued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - _
The Company has limited exposure to interest rate risk. The Company s borrowings relate to the bank

overdraft, which bears interest at 2.95% above the Bank of England rate. This is partially offset by the
interest the Company receives on its amounts owed by group undertakings at 1.7% above the LIBOR
rate. The Company, together with the-support of the. Group and central treasury department, closely -
manage cash flow and interest rate exposure with a view for the Group as a whole.

(b) Credit risk

To mitigate customer credit risk, the Company employs policies that require credit checks on potential
customers before sales are made. On an ongoing basis, debtors are rigorously monitored for adherence
to terms. To mitigate credit risk in relation to cash and deposits with financial institutions, the Company
only places deposits with major UK high street banks. .

The Company'’s trade recelvables at the reporting date are disclosed in note 15.
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk. that the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its

obligations when they' fall due or will have to do so at excessive cost. This risk can arise from

mismatches in the timing of cash flows relating to assets and liabilities. This risk is managed through

effective credit control procedures (including managing credit risk) and detailed financial reviews

regarding the acceptance of any proposed significant financial obligations to ensure that the Company -
can continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due '

- The new CAA covenant lmplemented in FY 2023 reqwres that 70% of the Company s creditors must
be held as cash.

The Group applies a conservative approach towards liquidity and closely manages .and monitors
liquidity through rolling 18-month operating cashflow forecasts and comparing actual cashflows to
-forecast. Detailed weekly cashflow forecasts are prepared and reviewed by Group treasury.

The}Company‘s. trade and other’payables at the reporting date are discloeed in note 17.
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23, Financial rjsk mana_ge‘me'nt (‘coniinued)

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Companys financial liabilities by their contractual maturlty date at the
reporting period’s end. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

' , Within : . Greater Tota!

Year ended On  ‘one 1t02 = 2to5 than 5 contractual Carrying

30 June 2023 demand . year years _years years cash flows amount

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000- £'000

Trade creditors .- 20800 .- - - - 29,800 29,800
. Amounts owed to I S » ‘ A

group undertakings 36,964 - - - ' - - 36,964 36,964

Other payables R - 8846 - - - | 8,846 8,846

Borrowings .~ - 26,300 - . - - 26300 . 26,300

Lease liabilites - - 4335 2291 3643 1,128 11,397 . 9,489

Provisions for other - ‘ N .

liabilities and o ‘ o .

~ charges . . - 689 173 311 210 1,383 1,292

36,964 69,970 2,4AG4A 3,954 1,338 114,690 112,691
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Year ended L Within 4 " Greater Total

30 June 2022 On . one 1to 2 2to5 than5 contractual Carrying
(Restated) - demand year years years @ years cashflows = amount

' ~ £'000 £'000 £000  £000 £'000 £000 _ £'000

- Trade creditors - - 55932 , - - - 55,932 55,932

Amounts owed
to group : L
undertakings . - 19,039° - - - - 19,039 19,039
Other payables - 10,095 608 - - 10,703 . 10,703
Borrowings - 13,951 - - - 13951 13,951
Lease liabilities ' - 3,843 .2,'046' 2911 . 338 9,138 7,646

Provisions for
other liabilities ‘ ‘ ‘ o _ )
and charges ' - 559 115 196 40 - - 910 =~ 880

19,039 84,380 2,769 3,107 378 - 109,673 108,151

(d) Transactional risk

Due to the nature of a retail business the Company is exposed to a risk of fraud on customer -
transactions. To mitigate this risk the Company has in place credit card and banking policies which form
part of the Company's minimum standards. Ensuring adherence to these standards forms part of the
monthly internal audit process. * '

‘(e) Supplier insolvency risk

If a supplier were to be-declared bankrupt or insolvent,.the Company.would have financial exposure.

Any risk is mitigated by diversification of suppliers, use of national scheduled carriers and, where
- possible, transacting with those of the Company’s preferred suppliers who are ABTA (Association of

British Travel Agents)/ ATOL (Air Travel .Organisers' Licensing) / IATA (International Air Transport
" Association) members.

() Capital risk

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders, and benefits for other stakeholders,
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis.of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash
-and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial
position plus net debt.
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24. Share based payments - |

. The Company recognises a share based payment expense based on an allocation from its parent
company of the fair value of the awards granted. The share- based payment awards in the year are
descnbed below. -

Long Term Retenticn Plan (LTRP)

‘General terms

Invited participants are granted base rights, for no consideration, in annual tranches over a 12 year
period with vesting conditions based upon continued service. At the time base rights are granted,
" participants are granted a corresponding number of matched rights for no consideration (one matched
right for each base right granted) : .

Rights granted under the plan carry no d|V|dend or voting rlghts When, exermsable each rlght is
convertible into one ordinary Flight Centre Travel Group Limited share. The plan’s rules stipulate that
the number of shares resulting from exercising all unexercised rights cannot exceed 5% of the parent
.company's |ssued capital- (currently less than 2 1%). :

Vesting reqwrements

Base’ rights granted to participants for each tranche will vest on the base rights vesting dates, subject ‘

to the service condition being satisfied (participants remain employed by the Company at the vesting
date). Matched rights granted to participants for each tranche will vest on the matched rights vesting
dates, subject to the service condition being satisfied (participants remain employed by the Company
at the vesting date) and the base rights (or shares) in respect of the respective grant continue to be
held. '

- Method of settlement

The base rights and matched rights may be newly issued by the parent company purchased on- market
or allocated from treasury shares. :

: Valuatlon

The fair value of base and matched rights under the plan is estimated at the date of grant using a fixed
Australian dollar amount ‘of rights granted for each participant and the Black-Scholes option pricing
model which takes into account the rights’ term, the rlghts non-tradeable nature, the expected dividend
yield and rlsk free rate for the rlghts term.

-UK relevant grants:

Grant number ' Grant 4 Grant5- - Grant6 ‘Grant7 . Grant8

: TJduly - 1 Jduly © 1 July 1 July 1 July

Grant date ' 2018. 2019 2020 - 2021 2022

Year vested and - August =~ August . "August- August August

exercisable * - o 12021 - 2022 2023 2024 2025
’ "1 July -1 July 1-July 1 July 1 July -

Expiry date 2030 - 2030 - 2030 2030 2030

17.02

. Value per right at grant date (in AUD §) 54.26 -42.06 11.30 17.27

*The vesting date is the day FCTG releases full year financial results to the ASX in the year of veeting.
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24, 'S‘hare based paymente (continued)

Closing

Opening - :

A A : . balance Granted  "Vested Forfeited Exercised balance
2023 ' Number  Number Number . Number Number Number
Unvested Base - 120,484 81,745 (11,309) (4,073) - 186,847
Unvested Match 120,484 81,745 (11,309) (4,073) - 186,847
Vested Base ' - 3,632 ' - 11,309 - (5,849) 9,092
Vested Match . - 3,652 - 11,309 - (5,849) 9,112

- 248,252 163,490 - (8,146) (11,698)- 391,898

Opening . Closing -
E A . balance Granted ‘Vested Forfeited Exercised balance
2022 - Number Number Number .~ Number Number Number
* Unvested Base 68,524 160,519 (8,559) . - 120,484
- Unvested Match 68,524 60,519 - (8,559) - - 120,484 -
Vested Base : - ' - 8,559 - (4927) - 3,632
Vested Match - .- E - 8,559 - (4,907) 3,652 -
' - 137,048 121,038 ’ - - 248,252

(9,834)

The weighted-average contractual remaining life (until‘expiry date) is 8 years.

| Post-COVID-19 Retention P‘Ian (PCRP)

General terms

" Invited participants are granted one-off base rights, for no consideration, with vesting conditions based-
upon continued service. When these basé rights are granted, participants ‘are also granted a
corresponding number of one-off matched rights in two separate tranches for no consnderatlon (one
matched right for each base right granted). : .

Rights granted under the plan carry no leldend or votlng rights. When exercisable, each right is
convertible into.one ordinary Flight Centre Travel Group Limited share. The.plan’s rules stipulate that
the number of shares resulting from exercising all unexercised rlghts cannot exceed 5% of the parent
- company S |ssued capltal (currently less than 2.1%).

- Vesting requnrements

. Base rights granted to participants will vest on the base rights’ vestmg date, subject to the service -
condition being satisfied (participants remain employed by the Company at the vesting date). Matched
rights granted to participants for each tranche will vest on the matched rights’ vesting dates, subject to
the service condition being satisfied (participants remain employed by the company at the vesting date)
and for Tranche 1 matched rights that the base rights (or shares) in respect of the respective grant

" continue to be held, and for Tranche 2 matched rights’ that the Tranche 1 matched rights (or shares)
continue to be held. : 4

‘Method of settlement

The base rights.and matched rlghts may be issued by the parent company, purchased on-market or
allocated from treasury shares.
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24, Share based payments (continued)

‘ ‘Valuation .

The fair value of base and matched rights under the plan is estimated at the date of grant using the -
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value is allocated equally over the period from grant date
to vesting date. :

Grant number - o ' : ;. ' Grant1.-

Grant date : . 4 29 June 2020 -
' : : o , Matchmg r|ghts ‘Matching rights }
: : ) - Baserights .- -tranche1 . -tranche 2 N
Year vested and exercisable * . August 2022 August 2023 August 2024
., Expiry date ’ © 1 July 2031 1 July 2031 "1 July 2031
- Value per right at grant date (in AUD $) 9.65 - 98.25 L 8.83
Opening - T . Closing
. 4 : : balance Granted Vested . balance .

2023 : . Number : Number . - Number . .Number
Vested Base - - ) - 152,352 152,352
. Unvested Base 152,352 - (152,352) . : 0
“ Unvested Match 1 ' 76,177 ' - - 76,177
Unvested Match 2 76,177 : - ' - 76177
304,706 - - 304,706
Opening o - Closing
: : balance Granted - Vested balance
2022 - - - Number ~Number | Number Number
Unvested Base 152,352 . - : S 152,352
Unvested Match 1 78477 e - - ‘ 76,177
Unvested Match2 . = 76,177 - . - . 76177

304,706 - S - 304,706

* The vesting date |s the day FCTG releases full year financial results to the ASX in the year of vesting. . '
The weighted average contractual remairting life (until expiry date) is 6 years.:
Global Recovery Rights (GRR)

The GRR has ldentlcal objectives to the PCRP but is a broader program targeted at the Fllght Centre
Travel Group Limited's global workforce.

General terms

" Invited participants (all employees globally excludmg board members and senior executives) are
granted one-off rights, for no consideration. Rights granted under the. plan carry no dividend or voting
rights. When exercisable, each right is convertible into one ordinary Flight Centre Travel Group Limited
share. The plan’s rules stipulate that the number of shares resulting from exercising all unexercised
rights cannot exceed 5% of the parent company’s issued capital (currently less than 2.1%).
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24, Share based payments (continued)

Vesting reqmrements
Rights granted to participants will vest on the rights’ vestlng date, subject to the service condrtlon
-being satlsfled (participants remain employed by the Company at the vesting date).

Method of settlement
The rights may be |ssued by the parent company, purchased on- market or aIIocated from treasury
shares. .

Valuatlon

'The fair value of rights under the plan is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model which takes into account the rights’ term, the rights’ non-tradeable nature, the expected
divided yield and risk-free rate over the rights’ term. The fair value is allocated equally over the penod
from grant date to vesting date.

" Grant number Grant 1 Grant2: .
c ' 25June ' 15June
Grant date - 2021 - - 2022

' ‘ February February
Year vested and exercisable * 2023 2024
. : February February
Expiry date 2028 2028
Value per nght at grant date (in AUD $) 15.06 17.02
* The vesting date is the day\ FCTG releasee half year financial results to the ASX in the year of vesting.
Opening’ o o i . Closing
. : . balance Granted - Vested Forfeited Exercised balance
2023 ' Number Number Number Number  Number ~  Number
GRRII . . o ' - : S o )
Unvested- ‘ - 209,193 - . (2981) - - 206,212
Vested . - - - B - - - -
GRRI o : , :

~ Unvested : 197,768 3,600 (198,418) (2,950) . ' -

Vested ' , - - 198,418 ‘ - (100,924) 97,494
Opening : ' A Closing

R _ balance Granted Vested  Forfeited Exercised balance

© 2022 Number Number - Number Number - Number Number
GRRI : o -
Unvested - 200,768 - (3000) - .- 197,768

Vested . : ' - - - . - .-
The weighted average contractual rernaining life (until expiry date) is 6 years.

A second offering (Grant 2) of the GRR was granted on 15 June 2023, however th|s grant was still in
" the acceptance process at the year end with offers allocated only in November 2023.
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24. Share based payments (coritinued)
Employee Share Plan (ESP)

General terms : :

Eligible employees are granted a conditional right to one matched share for every two shares purchased
(for cash consideration), subject to vesting conditions. Employees are eligible to participate if they have
been employed full time or permanent part-time for at least three months. .

Vesting requirements

A participant must hold the- acquired shares for a period of two years and one month and still be
employed with the Company at the end of that time." If acquired shares are sold before the end of the
_vesting period, condltlonal rights to the matched shares are forfelted

Method of settlement

A participant who satisfies the vestlng conditions will become entitled to the matched shares on the last
day of the vesting period. The matched shares may be newly issued by the parent company, purchased
on- market or aIIocated from treasury shares.

’ Valuat|on

The market value of shares issued under the plan, measured as the weighted average price at which
the parent company'’s shares are traded on the ASX during the five days following the date on which
the contributions are-paid, is recognised in FCTG balance sheet as an issue of shares in the period the
shares are acquired by the employee. .

The fair value of matched shares allocated (but not issued) under.the plan is estimated at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which takes into account the rights’ term, the rights’
non-tradeable nature, the expected divided yield and risk-free rate over the rights’ term and is
recognised in FCTG balance sheet as part of reserves ‘over the period that the matched share vests"
with a corresponding expense recognised in the employee benefits costs. ’

-30-Jun 30-Jun -
- 2023 . 2022
Number of Number of ~
matched . matched
E : ' : shares : shares
Issued under the plan to participating employees N 6,689 17,918

" Allocated from share trust to participating employees L o 13,298 . -
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25 Related party transactlons

Fllght Centre (UK) Limited is a wholly owned subS|d|ary of Fllght Centre Travel Group L|m|ted (ultlmate

parent) in Australia. All members of the Flight Centre Travel Group are considered to be related parties

of Flight Centre (UK) Limited.

Assets as per the statement of financial position: -

68

30-Jun

30-Jun
4 ‘ ‘ 2023 2022
Related party . Nature of transactions £'000 ~ £'000
Flight Centre Travel Group Limited Opening balance
(Australia) . : 62,229 . . 169,403
Ultimate parent in Australia ‘Loan to parent company . (100’000)
' ' Operational transactions 15,466 (7,174)
Outstanding balance 77,695 62,229
Fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate ‘Opening balance ‘
parent undertaking . 50_4 205
’ ' Operational transactions 2,840 - 299
Outstanding balance 3,344 504
Flight Centre Travel Group (European Opening balance .
Finance) Limited : (4,109) E
Fellow subsidiary of the u/t/mate " Loan received ,
parent undertaking ' . (6,061) - (6,739)
‘ -Loan repaid - 25,616 - 2,736 .
Interest incurred . : 231 (59)
- Foreign exchange loss . (622) - (47)
Outstanding balance 15,055 (4,109)
Total owed'by group undertakings - ) butsfanding balance 96,094 62,733
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.25.' Related party transactions (continued)

. Liabilities as per the statement of_finaricial position:

69

‘3t)-Jun

©30-Jun

2023 2022
. , , £'000 £'000
ARelated party Nature of transactions '
Flight Centre Travel Group Limited - - Opening balance ‘ A
(Australia) . : (1,449) (1,108)
Ultimate parent in Australia Operational transactions :
o : _ ‘ (1,459) (341)
Outstanding balance (2,908) (1,449)
Flight Centre (UK) Wholesale lelted> Opening balance (17,054) (1,236) . -
Subsidiary ‘ : Operational transactions (11,213) (15,818)
Outstanding balance - . (28,267)  (17,054)
Flight Centre Travel Group (European Opening balance 12
Holdings) Limited ‘ (12) B
Fellow subsidiary of the ultimate Loan received ' ‘
parent. undedak/ng . : (3f49'1) (3'539)
: : Loan repaid _ 2,203 3,539 .
Interest incurred (3) (12)
Foreign exchange gain 3 -
Outstanding balance (1,300) (12)
Flight Centre Robin Limited Opening balance (1,230) ;
Fellow subsidiary of the ultimate . Loan received ' ,
parent undertaking ‘ ' . 1,250 (1.220)
' ' " Interest incurred - (19) (10)
Outstanding balance (1), (1,230)
Fellow subsidiaries of the ultlmate Opening balance L
parent undertaklng ' : (536) (45) _
' Operational transactions (5,253) - (491) .
Outstanding balance (5,789) (536)
Total owed to gtroup undertékings Outstanding balance (38,264)

"(24,390)
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25. Related party transéctidns (continued)

Key management and personnel compensation
Please refer to note 6 for the details of key management and personnel compensation.

26. Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

~ The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Flight Centre Travel Group Limited,
a company incorporated in Brisbane, Australia. Flight Centre Travel Group Limited has included the
Company in its consolidated financial statements. Copies’ of Flight Centre Travel Group Limited
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Australian Stock Exchange website at
http://www.asx.com.au or company secretary at Southpoint, 275 Grey Street, South Brisbane,
Queensland, Australia, 4101.

Flight Centre Travel Group Limited is the smallest and largest undertakmg to consolldate these fnanC|aI
' statements. . '
27. Subsequent Events

‘There are no subseqUent events as at signing date.
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